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1. Name
historic J/ KerKerndt & Brothers Office Block

and/or common Kerndt Brothers Building

2. Location
street & number 4th & Main Streets, not for publication

city, town Lansing vicinity of

state Iowa code 19 county Allamakee code 005

3. Classification
Category
__ district 
_* building(s) 
__ structure 
__site 
__ object

Ownership
__ public 

x private 
__both 
Public Acquisition
N.AP process 

__ being considered

Status
_* occupied 
__ unoccupied 
__ work in progress 
Accessible 
__ yes: restricted 
__ yes: unrestricted 
__ no

Present Use
__ agriculture 

x commercial 
__ educational 
__ entertainment 
__ government 
__ industrial 
__ military

museum
park
private residence
religious
scientific
transportation
other:

4. Owner off Property

name G. Kerndt & Brothers, Inc.

street & number and Main Streets

city, town Lansing vicinity of state Iowa

5. Location off Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Allamakee County Recorder's Office

street & number
Allamakee County Courthouse

city, town
Waukon

state Iowa

6. Representation in Existing Surveys
title None has this property been determined eligible? yes JLno

date N.A. federal state county local

depository for survey records N.A,

city, town N.A. state



7. Description

Condition
excellent

x good
fair

deteriorated
ruins
unexposed

Check one
unaltered

x altered

Check one
x original site

moved date

Describe the present and original (iff known) physical appearance

Built in 1861 and 1866, the G. Kerndt & Brothers Office Block reflects the significant 
contribution of the Kerndt family to Lansing's historical development. The structure 
is also a good example of nineteenth century commercial building design, and it 
calls attention to the importance of the general store, grain elevator and bank, and 
their interrelation in the small town.

The German-born Kerndt brothers built half of the three story, painted brick building 
in 1861 and expanded to erect a mirror image of it in 1866. The division between the 
two is visible in the rear brickwork. The building features a simple cornice, two 
stories of six-over-six windows having flat stone sills and lintels and their origi­ 
nal woodwork, and star tie rods. The structure's rounded corner with now removed 
iron balconies on the second and third floors was once its most remarkable feature.

The Kerndt brothers first opened a general store in the building, then expanded to 
offer banking. (The grain business was housed in a separate structure.) A doorway 
connected the store and bank. The building retains much of its original appearance 
and use, since two businesses now occupy the two commercial areas. The Kerndts lived 
above the business on the second and third floors, and this space, now little used, 
is unchanged. An original wood staircase remains in place.

In 1960 the owners covered the old storefront entrances with light-colored brick 
facing. Over the years, some side and rear openings have been enclosed or bricked 
up; shutters visible in a turn of the century photograph removed; and the iron bal­ 
conies taken down.

The building is the oldest structure in a commercial block of smaller buildings. 
Because of its size and historical associations, it is a local landmark in this 
picturesque Mississippi River town of 1,200 residents.



8. Significance

Peri

_KX_
X

iod
prehistoric 
1400-1499 
1500-1599 
1600-1699 
1700-1799 
1800-1899 
190$-

Areas off Significance — Check and justify below
archeology-prehistoric community planning
archeology-historic conservation
agriculture
architecture
art

XX commerce 
communications

economics
education
engineering

yy exploration/settlement
industry
invention

landscape architecture
law
literature
military
music
philosophy

1 politics/government
.

religion
science
sculpture
social/
humanitarian 
theater
transportation
other (specify)

Specific dates 1861; 1866 BuilderlArehHeet* Gustav, William, and Moritz Kerndt

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The Kerndt brothers provide a textbook example of the industriousness and united family 
effort that has often typified the history of small town commercial development in Iowa. 
Through a thorough understanding of the financial underpinnings of Lansing, a grain ship­ 
ment center on the Mississippi River, the Kerndts covered the vital areas of (1) mercan­ 
tile trade with their general store (2) crop sales with,their grain warehouse, and (3) 
finance with their small private bank.

Gustav was the first member of the Kerndt family to emigrate from Germany in 1849 when 
he opened a small broom factory in Schenectady, New York. Later he learned cigar making 
and opened a cigar business in New York City. His brother, Moritz, followed in 1853 and 
traveled to the Midwest, where the entire family joined him the following year. In 1856 
the Kerndts settled in Lansing. Brother Hermann farmed and provided the broom corn for 
the family's early broom business, while the remaining brothers (Gustav, William and 
Mortiz) opened a broom factory and alsoa cigar selling business. Soon, in 1858, the 
brothers were able to acquire sufficient goods to open a small dry goods store and then 
to purchase a lot on the levee for a grain elevator.

In 1861 the brothers built the first half of the G. Kerndt & Brothers general stores 
and were sufficiently successful to construct an addition of equal size five years 
later. The mercantile and grain businesses were related, since farmers patronized 
both concerns and led to the establishment of the third leg of their financial empire, 
a bank. Peterson's history of Iowa relates the following:

"Farmers came to town to sell their grain at the Kerndt elevator. They bought gro­ 
ceries and drygoods at the Kerndt store. Rather than carry home the money rea­ 
lized from sale of their products, a large number of farmers fell into the habit 
of leaving their currency in the large iron safe in the rear of the Kerndt store.

Sometimes, when they needeed money for financing their farm operations, they bor­ 
rowed at the Kerndt store. This was the day of private banks and soon the Kerndt 
store engaged in this business, in the 12-foot space, railed off in the rear of 
the building."

The bank was and continues to be a success. The family incorporated the Kerndt Brothers 
Savings Bank under this, its present title, in 1908.

Besides the triple threat business of the Kerndt family, the brothers participated in 
other community ventures. Gustav was among Lansing's first city councilmen, or trustees, 
and Moritz, whose family of eleven children lived above the store and bank, sat on the 
city council eleven years. All three brothers were officers in the city's original ' 
bank, the State Bank of Lansing. (Established in 1859, the bank underwent four name 
changes and reorganizations with banking law changes.) In 1908 the Kerndts incorpo­ 
rated their formerly private bank, the Kerndt Brothers Savings Bank.



9. Major Bibliographical References

see continuation sheet

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of nominatedproperty less than an acre. 
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V.rb.1 boundary d.scription and justification Lot 7> Mock 25j Orlglnal Town of Lanslng

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state N ' A - code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Barbara Beving Long and Ralph J. Christian, Architectural Historians

organization Office of Historic Preservation date August 1982

street & number East 12th and Grand Avenue telephone 515/281-5111

city or town Des Moines state Iowa

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification
The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

national ._ state local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89- 
665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certjfy that it has been evaluated 
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by th/National Park Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

title Director, Iowa State Historical Department date . August 25, 1982
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